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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

  
TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable
company for the year ended 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016. The Annual report serves the purposes of both a
Trustees' report, and a Directors' report under company law. 

The trust operates two secondary academies in Rotherham for pupils aged 11 to 19 years serving catchment areas in
Rotherham and surrounding areas, including Sheffield and Nottinghamshire.  Our academies currently have a combined
capacity of 2,747, including 414 sixth form places, and a combined roll of 2,438 in the school census on 1 October 2016.

Structure, governance and management

a. Constitution

The academy trust is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.  The trustees of
the Learner Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust Limited are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law.  The charitable company is known as Learner Engagement and
Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the are included in the Reference and administrative details on page 1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

c. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The company’s Articles of Association provide for the following positions on the Board of Trustees (the Board): 

• up to five Trustees appointed by the members of the company
• up to three Trustees appointed by the Board
• Executive Principal(s) (appointed by the Board) whom are ex-officio Trustees by holding this position
• a minimum of two Parent Trustees unless at least two parents are appointed on Local Governing Bodies (LGB).

BHP, Chartered Accountants page 3



LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

d. Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

Newly appointed Trustees have access to training on appointment to the Board.  The Trust subscribes to Learners First, a
partnership of over 200 schools from all education phases.  Learners First’s core aim is to strengthen governance
through the development of effective Trustees and governors who, as a result, are better equipped to hold to account,
challenge and support school leaders in order to better deliver the mission and improve outcomes for pupils people.
The Induction for New Governors course includes the following elements:

• the role of governing bodies
• how to be an effective member of a governing body
• the key roles and responsibilities of governing bodies in contributing to school improvement
• the different and complementary roles of the headteacher and the governing body
• roles of different stakeholders and their relationship with the governing body

Further training is available to relevant Trustees in connection with their responsibilities, including, for instance:-
Holding   Leadership to Account; Understanding the Governance Handbook; and Academy & MAT Governance.

e. Pay policy for key management personnel

The Board of Trustees has adopted a Trust Pay Policy to provide a clear framework for the remuneration of Trust
employees. The policy recognises the requirements placed on the Trust by the Education Reform Act 1988 and
subsequent legislation, together with the Teachers’ Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD) and the National Joint
Council and local conditions of service for non-teaching employees. New and updated support staff role descriptions are
evaluated and calibrated against national and regional standards.  The Trust’s Pay Policy operates with clear reference
to the Trust’s Appraisal Policy.

The Trust Pay Policy must be implemented in a fair and equitable manner within statutory and contractual obligations.
Any matter considered appropriate may be referred to the Board for ratification.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

f. Organisational structure 

During the year, notable changes in the membership of the Board of Trustees occurred.  These changes have provided a
markedly distinct division of responsibilities and duties between the Board and the Local Governing Bodies (LGB) of our
academies. The Board includes a breadth of experience. The Trustees have adopted significant changes to Trust
delegation schemes, providing a new formal structure to orchestrate the functions of governance and its executives,
enabling the breadth of talent and experience held by our Trustees, Governors, employees, volunteer workers and
stakeholders in the furtherance of the education of the Trust’s pupils.

The Board’s retained powers and those delegated to its Committees and LGBs are set out in its adopted Scheme of
Delegation and Terms of Reference.  The Board provides the strategic direction and leadership of the MAT.  The Board is
responsible for regulatory, contractual and financial compliance.  Board meetings consider the financial circumstances
of each academy and the Trust company.  The Board is directly served by its Finance and Audit Committee.  Designated
Trustees meet collectively with representatives of its academies in the three Consultation Groups:- Curriculum and
Education; Finance; and, Human Resources & Operations.  The Trust is served by two Executive Principals, one of whom
is permanently assigned the Trust’s Accounting Officer – a formal role required the Department for Education (DfE).
The company’s delegation arrangements provide clear distinction between the responsibilities of the Board of Trustees,
each academy’s LGB and the executive.

Finance and Audit Committee
The Trust’s Finance and Audit Committee is delegated the following key responsibilities:
• determining the funding model across the Trust, individual academies and the MAT levy.
• considering academies’ forecast funding, annual budgets, performance against budget and make 

recommendations to the Board.
• developing strategic financial plans, key performance criteria.
• reviewing the risk to internal financial control, agreeing a programme of work that addresses these, and to 

inform the accounting officer’s annual statement of internal control.
• ensuring that allegations of fraud and irregularity are investigated.
• overseeing the production of the statutory annual financial statements and recommending these to the Board for

its approval.
• other delegated duties, particularly in regard to the DfE’s Academies Financial Handbook.

Executive Leadership
The Executive Principals (EP), as the most senior executives, are appointed by and work under the direction of the
Board.  The EP lead the academies’ senior leadership team.  During the financial year, the Trust was able to establish
cross-trust teaching colleagues, and a single business team which will continue to develop to meet the needs of the
Trust. Trust cross-trust staff, including the Director of Business, are responsible to the EP.

Local Governing Bodies (LGB)
The Trust’s scheme of delegation requires each academy to operate a LGB that is principally concerned with reviewing
and challenging the performance of the academy Principal and the senior leadership team.  Each LGB comprises:
• the academy Principal.
• up to 12 governors, including a minimum of two parent, staff and co-opted governors.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

In carrying out its role, each LGB:
• promotes high standards and aims to ensure that students and pupils are attending a successful Academy which 

provides them with a good education and supports their well-being.
• is responsible to the Trustees for its actions.
• maintains a LGB that is competent, accountable, independent and diverse that promotes best practice in 

governance.
• aims to ensure that its Governors promote and uphold high standards of conduct, probity and ethics.

The LGBs have the power to appoint and remove Governors, other than the academy Principal.

LGBs responsibilities include ensuring the Trust’s policies are adhered to and making recommendations to the Board on
matters including the MAT and School Improvement Plan. LGB are supported by sub-committees, including:- Student
Discipline and Exclusion; Student Welfare; Staff Grievance The responsibilities of key LGB committees include:-
Admissions; Student Welfare; and,  Student Discipline.  Other sub-committees may be convened by the LGB on an ad
hoc basis.

Academy Principals
The Principals are delegated the internal organisation, management and control of the academy, the implementation of
all Trust policies and the direction of teaching and the curriculum.  Each academy is required to maintain a Financial
Procedures Manual that sets out operational systems and controls to address delegation to members of staff.  To the
Principals, are delegated financial decisions of higher value, some of these being in conjunction with the Director of
Business.  Delegations that require approval by the DfE, including those under the Academies Financial Handbook, must
be passed to the Board or its Finance & Audit Committee.

Each academy’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT), comprising the Principals and senior leaders, has operational control of
their academy. SLTs assist the Principals in implementing policy, monitoring the quality of provision and making
recommendations to the LGB. In relation to financial matters, the Director of Business is responsible for producing
financial reports and maintaining proper financial and other procedures.

Middle Leaders in each academy contribute to the decision making processes and are instrumental in ensuring the
implementation of policies and procedures.  Subject leaders and pastoral leaders meet together regularly and these
meetings serve both to further the school improvement agenda and to provide additional professional development
opportunities for colleagues.  Colleagues are subject to performance review procedures, the targets contained in which
all contribute to the achievement of each academy’s improvement plan.

g. Connected organisations, including related party relationships

The Trust does not operate any formal federation relationships with other education establishments but its staff, across
the curriculum and in the business team, share their experience with many other schools and organisations.  This
collaborative work, in furtherance of the Trust’s charitable object, is detailed under the heading ‘Achievements and
Performance’ below.

h. Trustees' indemnities

Trustees are indemnified under the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA).  The RPA is not an
insurance scheme but is a mechanism through which the cost of relevant risks that materialise will be covered by
government funds.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Objectives and Activities

a. Objects and aims

The Academy Trust’s charitable objects are the following:

• to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the 
generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing schools (“the 
mainstream Academies”) offering a broad and balanced curriculum or educational institutions which are 
principally concerned with providing full-time or part-time education for children of compulsory school age who, 
by reason of illness, exclusion from school or otherwise, may not for any period receive suitable education unless 
alternative provision is made for them (“the alternative provision Academies”) or 16 to 19 Academies offering a 
curriculum appropriate to the needs of its students (“the 16 to 19 Academies”) or schools specially organised to 
make special educational provision for pupils with Special Educational Needs (“the Special Academies”).

• to promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of the areas where the Academies are established and its 
surrounding area the provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who 
have need of such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social 
and economic circumstances, or for the public at large in the interests of social welfare and the object of 
improving the condition of life of the said inhabitants.

Adopted Aims and Values of the Trust

The Trust has the following aspirations:

• every student should ‘Achieve Excellence’.
• to place students at the centre of everything we do.
• to create a culture of success and a love of learning which enhances students’ achievement and their personal, 

social and emotional development.
• every student, irrespectively of their starting point, succeeds and achieves.

The Trust believes:

• all students should experience quality first teaching. 
• all students have the right to learn and achieve uninterrupted by others.
• all members of our community will expect high standards of behaviour and promote an understanding of the 

difference between right and wrong.
• all students have the right to have their progress monitored and be provided with regular constructive feedback 

and the setting of challenging but realistic future targets.

Our academies encapsulate their values within a key motto:

‘Achieving Excellence’ 
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Each academy shares common aims:

• To provide teaching and learning of the highest quality, leading to quality outcomes for all students, enabling 
every student to realise their full potential, to develop independence of thought and communication skills, to use
language and number effectively and to understand and use modern technology

• To follow a broad, balanced, relevant pastoral and academic curriculum, which:

o ensures progress is maximised by the course choices available.
o ensures students are equipped for the next stage in their learning.
o is differentiated and suited to individuals when appropriate.
o facilitates learners’ physical, mental, social, cultural, moral and spiritual development
o teaches the importance of a healthy lifestyle.
o fosters a sense of responsibility, an awareness of right and wrong, and tolerance of and respect for others.
o exemplifies and develops attitudes through which individuals gain an appreciation and understanding of 

the values which enable each student to become a good citizen and through which they are prepared to 
become responsible members of society

• To provide opportunities for students to demonstrate responsibility and to contribute to the academy and wider 
community, developing self-confidence and a sense of pride in work and achievement

• To involve parents/carers and the wider community in the education and development of our students

• To enrich the curriculum with visits and visitors and to foster in students an appreciation of, and concern for, the 
environment

• To create a school ethos which promotes ambition and celebrates success.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

Our Academies

The Trust provides education for Year 7-11 pupils of different abilities who are mainly drawn from the areas in which the
academies are situated. We place an emphasis on meeting the needs of individual students, including those with SEN
(with or without statements) and the more able and talented.

The Trust provides broad and balanced curriculums with the overarching aim of providing courses well matched to
students’ needs, abilities, aptitudes and aspirations.  Brinsworth Academy and Dinnington High School, formerly a
Science College and a Science and Engineering College respectively, retain particular identities as centres of excellence
for the teaching of Science and Technology and as academies which offer a wide range of extension and enrichment
activities in Science, Maths and Technology.

Our academies include Sixth Forms, which provide progression routes at Level 3 for students who were on roll until 16+
or who transfer into Sixth Form from other local schools.  Our academies sit at the heart of their communities,
promoting community cohesion and sharing facilities with other schools and the wider community.

In the period ending 31 August 2016, admission arrangements were those which apply to local authority maintained
schools and under which the academies previously operated.

Trust Objectives for the 2015-16 and 2016-17 school years.

Leadership and Management 

• Revision of SLT roles, responsibilities and systems in order to establish a LEAP senior leadership model
• Ensure robust financial planning across the trust
• Promotion and marketing of the trust 
• Phased alignment of all staffing structures
• Induct new BOTS / review of LGB
• Implement Trust curriculum structure

Outcomes

• LEAP target met at all key stages 
• To align data collection and reporting systems 
• Development of an intervention team 
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Personal Development, Behaviour and Welfare

• Attendance targets met.
• Review of and alignment of behaviour policy. 
• Review strategies to raise aspirations across the Trust.

Quality of Teaching and Learning

• Review of QA process for teaching and learning.
• Develop ‘LEAP’ teaching and learning approach.
• Develop CPD offer across the Trust.

c. Public benefit

The Trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit published by the
Charity Commission in exercising their powers or duties.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Achievements and performance

a. Key financial performance indicators

The trust recognises the importance of performance indicators, to ensure that it delivers educational and financial
excellence.

Each academy’s financial performance is monitored by the Board, Local Governing Bodies and the Senior Leadership
Teams through periodic internal financial reports. 

It is also monitored through the completion and submission to the EFA of:

• the Trust’s Annual Report and Financial Statements
• Whole Government Accounts data, including budget forecasts for the forthcoming year
• the annual AAR (Academy Accounts Return)
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

b. Review of activities

Brinsworth Academy

At GCSE, 57% of Year 11 achieved C+ in both English and Maths. The Ebacc was 31%. P8 was –0.14. at post 16, the Value
Added score was a record breaking +0.24.

Examination Results 2016

* The English Baccalaureate requires students to attain C+ in

• English
• Maths
• Science (2GCSEs)
• A Modern Foreign Language
• History or Geography

Admissions

Admissions to the academy in September 2015: 236 students joined our Year 7 (standard admission number: 255); 126
students joined the Sixth Form (Year 12).
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Attendance

Improving attendance and reducing Persistent Absence (PA)* is a major priority for the academy.

* >=15%
** 10% threshold (new DfE Defn)
¥ former DfE definition introduced (14-15) so as to include Y11 study leave time after Easter 2015

Beyond the Curriculum

Beyond the curriculum, Brinsworth Academy offered a wealth of extension and enrichment activities to its students and,
where appropriate, to those of other schools.  These included:

- STEM Lego League and trip to Flamingo Land
- Foreign language visits to France and Germany
- New York visit
- Ski trip to Bormio, Italy
- Performing Arts visit to London and Sheffield Theatres
- Years 5/6 – Sphere Science STEM Evening (Science, Technology, Engineering And Mathematics), Professor 

Brainstorm Science Show
- Year 6 Community Day
- Y7-10 Climbing Competition 
- Science Week activities – Y8 Aspire More Able, Great Scott, STEM Ambassador Workshops
- Maths visits – ‘Racing to School’ project at Doncaster Racecourse, Maths Pop Quiz at SHU and The Royal Institute,

London
- Maths activities – James Grime, UKMT Maths Challenges
- STEM visits included Y13 visit to Chester Zoo, Games Britannia, Swann Morton, Sheffield Hallam Science Labs, 

University of Sheffield
- Y7 visit to Chester Zoo, University of Manchester, Games Britannia, Blood Hound Project, Swann Morton, Blood 

Bank, Sheffield Hallam Science Labs, University of Sheffield Chemistry Department, First Lego League 
Competition, Brinsworth Training 

- Other STEM activities included Y12 Aspire More Able, Young Engineers STEM Challenge, Faraday Challenge
- Applied Science visit to Sheffield University
- Year 10 fieldtrip visit to Burbage Brook
- Y11 University Challenge at Sheffield University
- Art visits to Harry Potter experience, Yorkshire Sculpture Park, and to London, Liverpool and Manchester galleries
- RE visit to Beth Shalom and Worksop College
- Duke of Edinburgh Awards
- Year 12 Geography residential to Scarborough, Manchester University visit and Burbage Brook 
- Year 12 Business visits to Yorkshire Wildlife Park and local business
- Travel and Tourism Residential to Barcelona
- Y12/13 Art visit to Amsterdam
- Performing Arts Production – Loserville
- One School One Community visit to Caythorpe Court
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

An extended schools’ activities programme, delivered through Brinsworth and its cluster primary schools’ partnership,
secured just under £48,000 in the year and provided diverse activities that appealed to a wide variety of student
attendees, and often their family members, during the school holidays and after school clubs.  Over 2740 beneficiaries
took part in term and holiday activities, 31% of whom were Pupil Premium students accessing holiday activities for free.
Our cluster activities included:- a wide range of sports, athletics, dance and fitness activities, music tuition and band
development, drama productions (Frozen and the Lion King), first aid tuition.

Dinnington High School

At GCSE, 53% of Year 11 achieved a C+ in English and Maths. The Ebacc was 10%. P8 was -0.45. at post 16, the Value
Added score was -0.1 which was an improvement on the previous year 

Examination Results 2016

Admissions

Admissions to the academy in September 2016: Dinnington 180 students joined our Year 7 (standard admissions number
252); 98 students joined the Sixth Form.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Attendance

Improving attendance and reducing Persistent Absence (PA)* are major priorities for the academy.

* >=15%
** 10% threshold (new DfE Defn)
¥ former DfE definition introduced (14-15) so as to include Y11 study leave time after Easter 2015

Beyond the Curriculum

Beyond the curriculum, Dinnington High School offered a wealth of extension and enrichment activities to its students
and, where appropriate, to those of other schools.  These included:

- Billy Elliot - trip to London involving 70 students
- ‘Random Act of Kindness’ week held in January
- Creative Arts Showcase – evening entertainment
- Debating Competition - Top Dogs debating challenge’ – winning students at each school visited the Houses of 

Parliament
- Cake ‘Bake Off’ competition in aid of Sports Relief
- ‘Stigma and Migration’ workshop run by the British Red Cross
- Rotherham Dance Competition
- Y7/8 STEM Club trip to Magna
- Rotherham Shakespeare Festival – Midsummer’s Night Dream at the Magna
- Rotherham’s Got Talent
- Students commemorated the fallen at the Battle of the Somme
- Music and Dance Evening 2016

Capital Funding Bid Success and Implementation

The Trust continues to be successful in securing and delivering capital grant funding to improve and replace ageing
school buildings and infrastructure.

Following the announcement in February 2015, which we reported in last year’s annual report, Brinsworth Academy has
been working with the DfE’s Priority School Building Programme (PSBP) team and our construction project management
company to secure arrangements to build our replacement sports facility representing a £2.75million investment at
Brinsworth Academy.  The rebuild is part of the Government’s £4.4 billion Priority School Building Programme Local
Delivery Partnership.  Our new facility, the Ian Burton Sports Centre, is named after our former colleague, Ian Burton,
who inspired successive generations of students in the field of sport and outdoor education during his 36 year teaching
career at Brinsworth.  The new facility will be available to students and our community.  The academy is at the forefront
of the government’s PSBP programme and is expected to be the first completed project, with an anticipated completion
of the facility in September 2017.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Although Brinsworth’s two applications to the DfE under the Condition Improvement Fund 2016-17 (CIF 16-17) were not
successful, the academy was able to complete the CIF 15-16 mechanical and electrical systems across the whole of the
academy site, representing a value of £278,000.

Dinnington High School completed the refurbishment works to Osborne Block, also under the DfE CIF 16-17 grant, which
include the replacement of wooden windows with thermally efficient UPVC units, improved building insulation and
installation of a roof edge protection system.  This represents a £246,000 investment in the academy.

Financial review

a. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

b. Financial performance and position

The financial statements incorporate transactions for the 12 month trading period for both academies, which differs
with the prior reporting period as this included the addition, in February 2015, of Dinnington High School’s assets and
liabilities and its seven months of trading in the Multi-Academy Trust.  The Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA)
includes, therefore, full year operating for both Brinsworth Academy’s and Dinnington High School.

The Statement of Financial Activities for the period ended 31 August 2016 include the following outturn positions.  In
relation to Brinsworth Academy, there was a gain, excluding pension adjustments, of £34,929 on unrestricted funds and
loss £138,899 on restricted general funds i.e. a deficit on revenue activities of £103,970.  Brinsworth Academy’s element
of the Local Government Pension fund (LGPS) incurred an actuarial loss of £1,515,000 for the period.  In relation to
Dinnington High School, there was a loss in unrestricted funds of £69,282 and restricted funds loss of £25,944 during the
year.  The Dinnington High School’s LGPS fund incurred an actuarial loss of £1,314,000 for the period.

At 31 August 2016, the SoFA for the Trust illustrates reserves in unrestricted funds were £572,948 and reserves in
restricted general funds, excluding the Restricted Fixed Asset Fund and LGPS fund liability, were £1,008,456.  The Trust’s
restricted fixed asset fund balance includes DfE grants earmarked to finance Brinsworth Academy’s planned capital re-
building programme.

The use of the recurring grants from the Department for Education is restricted to particular purposes.  The DfE grants
received by the Trust to the period ended 31 August 2016 and the associated expenditure are included as restricted
funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

During the year, the academy used formula capital grant and additional funds to provide the following facilities: 

Brinsworth Academy
• £5,495 - air conditioning
• £2,550 - interactive classroom monitor

Dinnington High School used formula capita and Condition Improvement Funding for the following:
• £215,752 - Refurbishment of Osborne Block
• £2,990 - sports equipment
• £2,700 - food equipment
• £5,920 boiler replacement

The value of the Trust’s assets and liabilities are detailed in its balance sheet at valuations which are shown in the notes
to the accounts.  The Balance Sheet value of the Trust decreased from £24,632,606 to £20,366,525.  The assets of the
Trust were used by the pupils of both academies and to our communities and other stakeholders in accordance with the
Trust’s charitable object.

In accordance with the Charity Commission’s Statement of Recommended Practice (the SORP) – Accounting and
Reporting by Charities 2015, such grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the
fixed asset fund.  The restricted asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges, in accordance with the
Trust’s accounting policy, over the assets’ expected useful life.  On 31 August 2016, the net book value of the fixed assets
was £23,565,152.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

c. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Academy is not generally exposed to significant uncertainty in relation to financial instruments. The key issue is the
pension scheme liability which is included in the accounts on the basis of actuarial advice and inevitably will be subject
to fluctuations in the future.

d. Reserves policy

The Trust’s Free Reserves are freely available for general purposes consist of its free reserves (unrestricted funds) and
the balance in the General Annual Grant (restricted fund).  At 31 August 2016, the Trust held free reserves of £572,948,
and GAG reserves of £963,357, totalling £1,536,305.  The Trust considers it appropriate to protect its reserves at a level
of at least £1,300,000 for the current accounting period.  The introduction of a national funding formula, other potential
changes to funding and possible opportunities for growth of the Trust will require further consideration of this amount
at the appropriate time.

Additionally, the Trust holds restricted fixed asset reserves of £593,000 which will be used to fund on-going and capital
improvements across the Trust as described earlier in this report.  These funds may only be used in accordance with the
conditions of grant for the specific projects identified by the DfE at the time of grant.

e. Investment policy

The Trust’s Articles of Association restrict any decisions on the investment of Trust funds to the Board.  Trustees may
only invest funds after taking advice from a financial expert, as defined under the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000.  Investments are currently restricted to deposit accounts with the U.K. banks.  Any interest is returned to the trust
as unrestricted income.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

f. Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in particular those relating to the specific
teaching and other operational areas and its finances.  The Trustees have implemented a number of systems to assess
the risk that the schools face, especially in the operational areas (e.g. in relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying
and school trips) and in relation to the management and control of its finances.  Systems are in place, including
operational procedures (e.g. vetting of new staff and visitors, supervision of the school grounds) and internal financial
rules in order to minimise risk.  Where significant financial risk still remains, the Trustees have ensured they have
relevant insurance indemnity cover alongside controls.  The Trust has an effective system of internal financial controls.  

The Trust’s Risk Register documentation identifies the controls are in place to minimise and mitigate potential impact on
the organisation.  Assessed risks reflect the continuing efforts taken by the Trust during the year and includes
appropriate review dates for those risks.  All proposed new activities are assessed for risk.  Risks are rated using a
consistent scoring system. 

The most significant risks are identified below:

1. Educational Outcomes

A significant risk to the Trust is to ensure that outcomes for students rapidly improve in this cycle. This risk is further
accentuated in light of the changing accountability measures and the changes to exam requirements for students. The
academy will need to respond to the fact that examinations will be significantly more challenging than at present and
students will need to attain higher grades under the new system to achieve the equivalent grades. Curriculum models
will also need to respond in order for students to attain the required Progress 8 outcomes. See Trust priorities.

2. Future Years’ Revenue Position & Robust Financial Control

Our academies’ government grant income forecasts for future years are based on the most current communiques from
the Education Funding Agency, on behalf of the Department for Education.  The EFA determines the funds available to
the Rotherham Schools Forum to distribute to all schools in the district.  Pupil numbers are the core driver of funding.
Our pupil number forecasts include in school movement of each year cohort (including usual migration), those in our
feeder primary schools and beyond.  Our academies continue to promote their strengths to attract new students.

The Trust’s academies are, essentially, solely reliant on government finance as provided by our funding agreement with
the Department for Education.  In 2015-16, over 97% of the Trust’s grant funded recurring revenue income was publicly
funded.  This reliance will not change.  In its Spending Review in 2015, the government declared that transforming
education is central to its commitment to extending opportunity and delivering social justice.  The national schools
budget (not including 16-19 further education funding) will, in real terms, be protected for the duration of the
Parliament.  The announcement holds the dedicated schools grant schools block at flat cash, per pupil, and pupil
premium funding at current rates.  The Spending Review announced the move to a national funding formula with the
intention of its introduction in the 2017-18 year, with a two year transitional period.  In its consultation ‘Schools and
high needs funding reform - The case for change and consultation summary’ (March 2016), the government identifies
current funding to each local authority for its schools (including academies) continues, each year, to start from the
assessment of local need made over a decade ago.  The proposal would mean national funding formula including: per-
pupil costs; additional needs costs; school costs; and a geographic adjustment.  We note the relative position, per pupil,
of Rotherham schools’ funding, which may translate to significant reductions in our academies’ future income.  In July
2016, the Secretary of State for Education announced the introduction of the national funding formula would not take
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

place until 2018-19.  The no worse than 1.5% protection (compared to 15-16 year), per pupil, will continue to apply to
our central government funding delivered through the local authority funding formula.  We await the second phase of
the DfE’s consultation after the government’s autumn statement as to our academies’ changing school-funding stream.

Our 16-19 further education funding provides 9.3% and 13.2% of their government funding in Brinsworth Academy and
Dinnington High School respectively.  The government has announced it is protecting a cash terms protection of the
current national base rate per student for 16 to 19 year olds in school sixth forms, for the rest of the Parliament. 

Since September 2015, our academies have been subject to increased Teachers’ Pension scheme contributions, rising
from 14.1% to 16.4%.  National Insurance allowances under the Pensions Act 2014 caused an increase in contributions of
around 3.4% from April 2016.  This is against alongside wage inflation increments of typically 1%, which were consistent
with government pay review body recommendations for teaching staff and the NJC agreements for support staff.  

The Trust secured significant savings during the year, including the loss of teaching and support staff, which has not
prejudiced its ability to provide high quality education for its pupils.  The Trustees will need to continue to take
significant action to reduce expenditure and maximise opportunities for additional funding by continuing to market our
academies to maximise pre and post 16 places.

3. Ageing School and Plant

Dinnington High School and Brinsworth Academy continue to bid for central government capital investment to update
or replace school buildings and their core infrastructure.  With increasing pressure on revenue income, the Trust must
continue to demonstrate the importance of securing non-recurring capital grants under the Capital Improvement
Programme and school building programme.  

The prior year’s application to the DfE Priority School building Programme bids round resulted in great success which
begins to reduce this risk at Brinsworth Academy, although many of the remaining buildings have poor thermal
efficiency, requiring excessive heating in the colder months and costly air conditioning during warmer periods.
The Trust continues to seek further capital investment from the Department for Education to address the Trust’s school
needs and aspirations.
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Plans for future periods

a. Future developments

In determining our objectives and planning our priorities for the future, the Trustees are mindful of the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.

We will continue to have the raising of standards, through improvements in progress and learning, as a top priority.  This
will continue to ensure progression routes for our students at 16+ and 18+, whether into employment or into
further/higher education, and the avoidance of young people becoming classed NEET (not in education, employment or
training).

The LEAP multi academy trust places students at the centre of everything it does, with a focus on creating a culture of
success, a positive climate for learning, and enhancing students’ attainment, achievement and social and emotional
development. Achieving excellence is our overriding ambition.  It is an absolute priority that every student, irrespective
of their starting point, succeeds and achieves.  In order to do this, a high quality educational experience will be an
entitlement for every student.  We seek at all times to build positive partnerships with our primary schools, parents/
carers and the wider community to achieve these goals for our young people.

We will provide a high quality learning and cultural environment that inspires and motivates students. Our aim to
‘Achieve Excellence’ drives policy, practice and governance.

Our priorities for 2016 take into account the needs of the individual academies and revised Ofsted framework:

• To secure good or better outcomes for learners at all key stages in both MAT academies with particular emphasis
on:
- High Achieving students
- Pupil Premium students
- Students with special educational needs and disabilities
- Students at risk of exclusion 

• To ensure robust financial planning in all our academies
• To investigate the prospect of Post-16 curriculum collaboration so as to ensure better value for money
• To develop MAT position in response to LA proposal for permanently excluded students
• The Phased alignment of all staffing structures
• Implement Trust curriculum structure
• Revision of SLT roles, responsibilities and systems in order to establish a LEAP senior leadership model
• Ensure robust financial planning across the trust
• Promotion and marketing of the trust 
• Phased alignment of all staffing structures
• Review of and alignment of behaviour policy 
• Review strategies to raise aspirations across the trust 
• Review of QA process for teaching and learning 
• Develop ‘LEAP’ teaching and learning approach 
• Develop CPD offer across the Trust

BHP, Chartered Accountants page 21



LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the persons who are Trustees at the time when this Trustees' report is approved has confirmed that:

 so far as that Trustee is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is

unaware, and

 that Trustee has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Trustee in order to be aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the charitable company's auditor is aware of that information.

This report was approved by order of the board of trustees as the company directors,  on 8 December 2016 and signed
on its behalf by:

................................................
B Rossiter
Chair of Trustees
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(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of Responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Learner Engagement and Achievement
Partnership Multi-Academy Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However
such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to Mr Riches, an Executive Principal, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Learner
Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also
responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the Statement
of Trustees' responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 9 times during the year. Attendance during the year
at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

B Rossiter, Chair 4 5
P Baxter 4 4
A Buckley, Chair (until resignation) 4 4
W Barsby, Executive Principal 7 7
K Bottomley 9 9
G Burke 3 5
M Carroll 4 4
C Eccles 4 4
R Fone 2 2
M Garrison 5 5
M Ghulam 3 4
I Holborn 3 4
A Riches, Executive Principal and Accounting Officer 7 7
M Slocombe 5 5
D Vickers 4 4

Governance reviews:

In the second half of the year significant changes were effected at Board level to secure a greater separation of roles
and responsibilities of those serving on the Board and LGBs.  Other than the EP, only one of the Trustees continued to
hold office.  The Board was joined by four newly appointed Trustees, and appointed a new Chairperson.  Our Trustees
hold a breadth of experience in the education and business sectors to oversee the operation of the MAT.  Many former
Trustees are now able to focus on their respective academy’s LGBs and to champion their success.  The Board adopted
revised schemes of delegation which were implemented at the beginning of the current school year.  Changes to the
scheme has allowed for the reduction in size of LGBs.  Prior to the conversion to the MAT, a review of governance
identified the need for: future further training and development; and future governor recruitment, based on least
strong skills, to support staff leadership.  Training for governors and Trustees has included the use of an external
consultant.

The MAT holds membership of the National Governors Association (NGA) to support our Trustees and governors.
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Board of Trustees Finance and Audit Committee

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

M Garrison (as Chair) 1 1
P Baxter 1 1
K Bottomley 1 1
A Buckley 1 1
Iain StJohn 1 1

Since the conversion to a MAT, the Board of Trustees has received finance reports from both academies.  Local
Governing Bodies operate Staffing, Finance and Premises Committees, which provide greater breadth of decision
making to governors.

Review of Value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Executive Principal has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value
in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the academy trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the academy trust has delivered improved
value for money during the year by:

• the Trust agreeing the formation of a single back office business team which provides finance, estates and HR 
services to its academies. The re-structure secured significant salary savings and provides continued

opportunities to purchase with  greater economies of scale and to align purchasing decisions for the MAT
• deploying staff across the trust in order to address areas of underperformance. This has ensured key staff are
used more effectively and efficiently
• during the year the trust being able to continue to secure significant savings in future years as a result of the 

managed departures of a number of colleagues in both academies, whilst securing the quality education of our 
pupils.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of  failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks
to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The
system of internal control has been in place in Learner Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust
for the year 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements. 
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Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees is of the
view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy trust's significant
risks, that has been in place for the year 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework

The academy trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes: 

 comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which

are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

 regular reviews by the Finance and Audit Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the

forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

 setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

 clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

 delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

 identification and management of risks.

The  board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided not to appoint an
internal auditor. However, the Trustees have appointed BHP, Chartered Accountants, the external auditor, to perform
additional checks. Three reviews were carried out by BHP at both academies, on the Trust’s financial systems, and
subsequently reported to Trustees.  The audits have included consideration of payroll, purchases, income, fixed assets
review, related parties, financial information presented to the Board and accounting systems. In addition, Mr M
Garrison, a trustee and a Chartered Accountant, carried out a review of the tendering process for the new sports centre
at Brinsworth Academy.
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Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Executive Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

 the work of the external auditor;

 the programme of additional checks carried out by the external auditors;

 the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development and

maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance and Audit Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of
the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 8 December 2016 and signed on their behalf, by:

................................................
B Rossiter, Chair
Chair of Trustees

................................................
A Riches
Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Learner Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust I have considered my
responsibility to notify the academy trust board of trustees and the Education Funding Agency of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with EFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place
between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard
to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2015.

I confirm that I and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy
trust’s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2015.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and
EFA. 

................................................
A Riches
Accounting Officer

Date: 08/12/2016
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

The Trustees (who act as governors of Learner Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust and
are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the
Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the
Education Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its
income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

 observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies' Accounts Direction 2015 to

2016;

 make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards (FRS 102) have been followed, subject to any material

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management.  They
are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the EFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 8 December 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

................................................
B Rossiter
Chair of Trustees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF LEARNER ENGAGEMENT

AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

We have audited the financial statements of Learner Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust
for the year ended 31 August 2016 which comprise the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and
expenditure account, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland" and the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to 2016 issued by the Education Funding
Agency.

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Trustees and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the
academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

 give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2016 and of its incoming

resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2015

and the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to 2016 issued by the Education Funding Agency.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
  

In our opinion the information given in the Trustees' report, incorporating the Strategic report, for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
  

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you if, in our opinion:
  
 adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from

branches not visited by us; or
  
 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

 certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
    
 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Philip Allsop (Senior statutory auditor)
  
for and on behalf of
  
BHP, Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors
  
2 Rutland Park
Sheffield
S10 2PD
8 December 2016
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING AUDITOR'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND
ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 9 October 2015 and further to the requirements of the
Education Funding Agency (EFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to 2016, we have carried out an
engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Learner
Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016
have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

This report is made solely to Learner Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust and the EFA in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Learner
Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust and the EFA those matters we are required to state in a
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than Learner Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust and the EFA, for our work,
for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of  Learner Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust's accounting
officer and the reporting auditor

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Learner Engagement and Achievement Partnership
Multi-Academy Trust's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 October 2010, and the
Academies Financial Handbook extant from 1 September 2015, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income
received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to 2016. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1
September 2015 to 31 August 2016 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to 2016 issued by the EFA.
We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter. 

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.
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The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes:
• Detailed testing on a sample basis to assess the nature of expenditure and whether funds have been used 

appropriately;
• Review of the academy’s internal financial procedures to ensure that controls are in place to prevent or identify 

regularity issues;
• Ensure that EFA approval has been obtained for relevant transactions;
• Discussions with Governors, Senior Leadership Team and the Accounting Officer throughout the audit process to 

ensure that all regularity threats have been addressed.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016 have not been applied
to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Philip Allsop (Senior statutory auditor)
  
for and on behalf of
  
BHP, Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors
  
2 Rutland Park
Sheffield
S10 2PD

Date: 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Total
funds

Total
funds

Note

2016
£

2016
£

2016
£

2016
£

2015
£

Income and endowments from: 

Donations and capital grants 2 4,502 - 82,595 87,097 13,277,959
Charitable activities 5 27,126 14,930,285 - 14,957,411 12,582,251
Other trading activities 3 107,631 9,796 - 117,427 80,489
Investments 4 24,918 - - 24,918 17,852

Total income and endowments 164,177 14,940,081 82,595 15,186,853 25,958,551

Expenditure on: 

Raising funds 27,247 114 - 27,361 57,984
Charitable activities 13,981 15,493,447 1,089,145 16,596,573 13,311,750

Total expenditure 6 41,228 15,493,561 1,089,145 16,623,934 13,369,734

Net income / (expenditure)
before transfers 122,949 (553,480) (1,006,550) (1,437,081) 12,588,817

Transfers between funds 19 (157,302) 202,637 (45,335) - -

Net income / (expenditure)
before other recognised gains
and losses (34,353) (350,843) (1,051,885) (1,437,081) 12,588,817

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined
benefit pension schemes 24 - (2,829,000) - (2,829,000) 346,000

Net movement in funds (34,353) (3,179,843) (1,051,885) (4,266,081) 12,934,817

Reconciliation of funds: 

Total funds brought forward 607,301 (1,184,701) 25,210,006 24,632,606 11,697,789

Total funds carried forward
572,948 (4,364,544) 24,158,121 20,366,525 24,632,606
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST
  
(A company limited by guarantee)

REGISTERED NUMBER: 07361021

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2016

2016 2015
Note £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 14 23,565,152 24,088,815

Current assets

Stocks 15 2,912 2,679

Debtors 16 306,680 394,204

Cash at bank and in hand 2,806,825 3,650,927

3,116,417 4,047,810

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 17 (887,263) (1,092,884)

Net current assets 2,229,154 2,954,926

Total assets less current liabilities 25,794,306 27,043,741

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than
one year 18 (54,781) (53,135)

Net assets excluding pension scheme liabilities 25,739,525 26,990,606

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 24 (5,373,000) (2,358,000)

Net assets including pension scheme liabilities 20,366,525 24,632,606

  
Funds of the academy

Restricted income funds:

   Restricted income funds 19 1,008,456 1,173,299

   Restricted fixed asset funds 19 24,158,121 25,210,006

   Restricted income funds excluding pension
liability 25,166,577 26,383,305

   Pension reserve (5,373,000) (2,358,000)

   Total restricted income funds 19,793,577 24,025,305

Unrestricted income funds 19 572,948 607,301

Total funds 20,366,525 24,632,606
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

    
BALANCE SHEET (continued)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2016

The financial statements were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue, on 8 December 2016 and are signed
on their behalf, by:

................................................
B Rossiter
Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 37 to 59 form part of these financial statements.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

        2016         2015
Note         £         £

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities 21 (830,125) 216,306

Cash flows from investing activities:
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 24,918 17,852
Proceeds from the sale of tangible fixed assets 2,050 -
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (123,541) (261,227)
Capital grants from DfE/EFA 82,595 1,428,305

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (13,978) 1,184,930

Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash transferred on conversion to an academy trust - 257,920

Net cash provided by financing activities - 257,920

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year (844,103) 1,659,156

Cash and cash equivalents brought forward 3,650,927 1,991,771

Cash and cash equivalents carried forward 2,806,824 3,650,927
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1. Accounting Policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP
(FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to 2016 issued by EFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006.

Learner Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-Academy Trust constitutes a public benefit entity
as defined by FRS 102.

First time adoption of FRS 102

These financial statements are the first financial statements of Learner Engagement and Achievement
Partnership Multi-Academy Trust prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (FRS 102) and the Charities SORP
2015 (SORP 2015). The financial statements of Learner Engagement and Achievement Partnership Multi-
Academy Trust for the year ended 31 August 2015 were prepared in accordance with previous Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (‘UK GAAP’) and SORP 2005.

Some of the FRS 102 recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements and accounting
policy choices differ from previous UK GAAP. Consequently, the Trustees have amended certain accounting
policies to comply with FRS 102 and SORP 2015. [The Trustees have also taken advantage of certain
exemptions from the requirements of FRS 102 permitted by FRS 102 Chapter 35 ‘Transition to this FRS’]

Reconciliations to previous UK GAAP for the comparative figures are included in note 29.

1.2 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
the Department for Education where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder and include grants from the Department for Education.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.3 Income

All income is recognised once the academy trust has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the
income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably.

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account
on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the
period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of
entitlement of receipt, its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and
expenditure account in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is
deducted from income and recognised as a liability. Capital grants are recognised when there is
entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts
of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund.

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where there is certainty of receipt and the amount can be
reliably measured.

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period in which it is receivable and to the
extent the goods have been provided or on completion of the service.

1.4 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each
activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in
undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity.
Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a
single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources.
Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the
portion of the asset’s use.

Costs of raising funds are costs incurred in attracting voluntary income, and those incurred in trading
activities that raise funds.

Charitable activities and Governance costs are costs incurred on the academy trust’s educational
operations, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned
to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.5 Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the academy
trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least
one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the
academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements..

1.6 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

All assets costing more than £1,500 are capitalised.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their
expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the
continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement
of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is
charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible
fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the
unrestricted fund.

Tangible fixed assets are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.
Depreciation is not charged on freehold land. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the
cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following
bases:

L/Term Leasehold Property - land - not depreciated; buildings - between 2% and 3%
Office equipment - 15%
Computer equipment - 20%

A review of impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the Statement of Financial Activities.

1.7 Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable
overheads.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.8 Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by
the academy trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the Bank.

1.9 Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly,
the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes.

1.10 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.11 Cash at Bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.12 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it
is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the
settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods
or services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle
the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the
present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to
the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.13 Financial instruments

The academy trust only has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial
instruments.  Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and subsequently
measured at their settlement value with the exception of bank loans which are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.14 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the
Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. As
stated in note 24, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use
defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting
purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in
separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each Balance sheet
date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of
financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account and comprises the interest cost on the
defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair
value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit
obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the
scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses

1.15 Agency arrangements

The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from EFA. Payments received from
EFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as
the trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The trust can use up to 5% of
the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of financial
activities. The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 27.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

1.16 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used
in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation
performed at 31 March 2013 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August
2016. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial
valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability. 

2. Income from donations and capital grants

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Total
funds

Total
funds

2016
£

2016
£

2016
£

2016
£

2015
£

Donations 4,502 - - 4,502 4,417
Transfers from Local Authority on

conversion - - - - 11,819,519
Capital grants - - 82,595 82,595 1,454,023

Total donations and capital grants 4,502 - 82,595 87,097 13,277,959
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

3. Other trading activities

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

Total
funds

Total
funds

2016
£

2016
£

2016
£

2015
£

Lettings 26,980 - 26,980 14,385
IT Management & Consultancy 218 - 218 4,650
Other 80,433 9,796 90,229 61,454

107,631 9,796 117,427 80,489

4. Investment income

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

Total
funds

Total
funds

2016
£

2016
£

2016
£

2015
£

Short-term deposits 24,918 - 24,918 17,852
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

5. Funding for Academy's educational operations

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

Total
funds

Total
funds

2016
£

2016
£

2016
£

2015
£

DfE/EFA grants

General Annual Grant - 13,977,194 13,977,194 11,621,220
Other DfE/EFA grants 1,187 639,339 640,526 582,263

1,187 14,616,533 14,617,720 12,203,483

Other government grants

Other government grants non capital - 73,088 73,088 72,889

- 73,088 73,088 72,889

Other funding

Other 25,939 240,664 266,603 305,879

25,939 240,664 266,603 305,879

27,126 14,930,285 14,957,411 12,582,251

6. Expenditure

Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total
2016

£
2016

£
2016

£
2016

£
2015

£

Expenditure on fundraising
trading 1,144 - 26,217 27,361 57,984

Education: 
      Direct costs 10,998,269 582,483 1,097,807 12,678,559 10,421,374
      Support costs 1,664,937 1,601,141 651,936 3,918,014 2,890,376

12,664,350 2,183,624 1,775,960 16,623,934 13,369,734
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

7. Analysis of resources expended by activities

Direct costs
2016

£

Support costs
2016

£

Total
2016

£

Total
2015

£

Education   12,678,559   3,918,014   16,596,573   13,311,750

Analysis of support costs

        2016
        £

        2015
        £

Support staff costs   1,618,230   1,267,792
Depreciation   64,720   50,614
Technology costs   129,227   124,709
Premises costs   1,601,141   938,585
Other support costs   429,998   463,077
Governance costs   74,698   45,599

    

Total   3,918,014   2,890,376

.

8. Net incoming resources/(resources expended)

This is stated after charging/(crediting):

        2016         2015
        £         £

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:
- owned by the charity 647,204 506,139

Auditor's remuneration - audit 14,900 14,950
Auditor's remuneration - other services 1,610 3,910
(Gain) on disposal of fixed assets (2,050) -
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

9. Staff costs

Staff costs were as follows:

        2016         2015
        £         £

Wages and salaries 9,837,551 8,149,583
Social security costs 807,853 606,713
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 1,544,744 1,202,335

12,190,148 9,958,631
Supply teacher costs 91,704 51,324
Staff restructuring costs 382,498 265,935

12,664,350 10,275,890

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

        2016         2015
        £         £

Redundancy payments 18,178 4,285
Severance payments 364,320 261,650

382,498 265,935

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows: 

        2016         2015
            No.             No.

Teachers 186 190
Administration and support 173 175
Management 14 15

373 380

Average headcount expressed as a full time equivalent:

        2016         2015
            No.             No.

Teachers 172 182
Administration and support 128 121
Management 13 15

313 318

BHP, Chartered Accountants page 46



LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

        2016         2015
            No.             No.

In the band £ 60,001 - £ 70,000 3 3
In the band £ 70,001 - £ 80,000 5 1
In the band £ 80,001 - £ 90,000 0 3
In the band £ 90,001 - £100,000 2 0
In the band £170,001 - £180,000 0 1

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severence payments totalling £243,966
(2015: £264,150). Individually , the payments were £22,336, £10,782, £32,181, £16,773, £15,588, £7,845, £3,536,
£15,420, £15,420, £18,294, £5,961, £20,689, £3,176, £2,274, £11,063, £12,845, £10,689, £8,563 and £10,533.

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior leadership team. The
total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by key management
personnel for their services to the academy trust was £1,060,767 (2015: £1,031,110).

10. Trustees' remuneration and expenses

The headteacher and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide
undertaking the roles of headteacher and staff, and not in respect of their services as trustees. Other trustees did
not receive any payments, other than expenses, from the academy in respect of their role as trustees. The value
of trustees’ remuneration for the period they were a trustee was as follows: R Fone - Remuneration £45,000-
£50,000 (2015: £130,000-£135,000) and employer's pension contributions £0-£5,000 (2015: £15,000-£20,000), A
Riches remuneration £60,000-£65,000 (2015: £55,000-£60,000) and employer's pension contributions £10,000-
£15,000 (2015 £5,000-£10,000), W Barsby remuneration £60,000-£65,000 (2015: £20,000-£25,000) and
employer's pension contributions £10,000-£15,000 (2015: £0-£5,000), C Eccles remuneration £40,000-£45,000
(2015: £15,000-£20,000) and employer's pension contributions £5,000-£10,000 (2015: £0-£5,000), I Holborn
remuneration £40,000-£45,000 (2015: £15,000-£20,000) and employer's pension contributions £5,000-£10,000
(2015: £0-£5,000).

During the year, no trustee received any reimbursement of expenses (2015: £nil).

Other related party transactions are set out in note 26.

11. Trustees' and Officers' Insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department of Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers indemnity element from
the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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LEARNER ENGAGEMENT AND ACHIEVEMENT PARTNERSHIP MULTI-ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

12. Central services

No central services were provided by the academy trust to its academies during the year and no central charges
arose.

13. Other finance expense

        2016         2015
        £         £

Interest income on pension scheme assets 220,000 159,000
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (305,000) (214,000)

(85,000) (55,000)

14. Tangible fixed assets

L/Term
Leasehold

Property
Office

equipment
Computer

equipment Total

£ £ £ £

Cost 

At 1 September 2015 24,949,627 520,568 228,875 25,699,070
Additions 109,806 11,185 2,550 123,541
Disposals - - (27,825) (27,825)

At 31 August 2016 25,059,433 531,753 203,600 25,794,786

Depreciation

At 1 September 2015 1,226,744 219,565 163,946 1,610,255
Charge for the year 535,708 80,518 30,978 647,204
On disposals - - (27,825) (27,825)

At 31 August 2016 1,762,452 300,083 167,099 2,229,634

Net book value

At 31 August 2016 23,296,981 231,670 36,501 23,565,152

At 31 August 2015 23,722,883 301,003 64,929 24,088,815

Included in land and buildings is freehold land at valuation of £6,096,000, (2015: £6,096,000) which is not
depreciated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

15. Stocks

        2016         2015
        £         £

Goods for resale 2,912 2,679

16. Debtors

        2016         2015
        £         £

Trade debtors 2,980 5,746
VAT recoverable 69,462 141,113
Prepayments and accrued income 234,238 247,345

306,680 394,204

17. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

        2016         2015
        £         £

Trade creditors 87,610 223,669
Other taxation and social security 415,451 410,789
Other creditors 28,193 18,336
Accruals and deferred income 356,009 440,090

887,263 1,092,884

        2016         2015
        £         £

Deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2015 52,300 154,413
Resources deferred during the year 147,805 32,573
Amounts released from previous years (52,300) (134,686)

Deferred income at 31 August 2016 147,805 52,300

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds in advance for business rates, alternative
provisions funding, trips, SEN funding, and music income.
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18. Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year

        2016         2015
        £         £

Other creditors 54,781 53,135
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19. Statement of funds

Brought
Forward Income Expenditure

Transfers
in/out Gains/ (Losses)

Carried
Forward

£ £ £ £ £ £

Unrestricted funds

General funds 607,301 164,177 (41,228) (157,302) - 572,948

Restricted funds

General Annual
Grant (GAG) 1,091,652 14,319,931 (14,650,863) 202,637 - 963,357

SEN - 52,970 (52,970) - - -
Pupil Premium - 301,898 (301,898) - - -
Enrichment Fund 47,059 215,166 (251,945) - - 10,280
Pupil Premium Plus - 20,118 (20,118) - - -
Disadvantaged Fund 1,975 - (721) - - 1,254
Self-Generated

Activity Funds 27,780 2,693 (12,439) - - 18,034
Awards For All 3,111 9,975 (3,080) - - 10,006
Street Games - 4,500 (2,040) - - 2,460
General Restricted

Funds 1,722 2,830 (2,881) - - 1,671
Made in Brinsworth - 10,000 (8,606) - - 1,394
Pension reserve (2,358,000) - (186,000) - (2,829,000) (5,373,000)

(1,184,701) 14,940,081 (15,493,561) 202,637 (2,829,000) (4,364,544)

Restricted fixed asset funds

Restricted fixed asset
funds 25,210,006 82,595 (1,089,145) (45,335) - 24,158,121

Total restricted
funds 24,025,305 15,022,676 (16,582,706) 157,302 (2,829,000) 19,793,577

Total of funds 24,632,606 15,186,853 (16,623,934) - (2,829,000) 20,366,525

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
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19. Statement of funds (continued)

Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant (GAG) - The Academies principal funding stream received from the Education Funding
Agency. This must be used to fund the normal running costs of the Academies for the benefit of existing students.

SEN - Additional funding to provide educational support for the students with a statement of special needs.

Pupil Premium - DfE funding to address the current underlying inequalities between children eligible for free
school meals (FSM) and their wealthier peers by ensuring that funding to tackle the disadvantage reaches the
pupils who need it most.

Enrichment fund - Funds from parents/carers for enrichment activities mainly representing school trips.

Pupil Premium Plus - Funding to address the current underlying inequalities between children eligible for free
school meals (FSM) and their wealthier peers by ensuring that funding to tackel the disadvantage reaches the
pupils who need it most.

Disadvantaged fund - Financial support from the DfE available for pupils disadvantaged by economic
circumstances to take part in extended school services.

Enrichment fund - Funds from parents/carers for enrichment activities mainly representing school trips.

Self-Generated Activity funds - Cost contributions towards Brinsworth and cluster school after-school and
holiday based activities.

Awards for All - National Lottery Funding encouraging training and qualifications.

Street Games - initiatives to get more people involved in sport.

General restricted funds - Charity fundraising.

Made in Brinsworth - Heritage Lottery Funding to explore and celebrate the industrial heritage of the Brinsworth
area.

Defined benefit pension liability - The deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme has been recognised
against restricted funds in order to match it against GAG as recommended by the EFA Accounts Direction.

Restricted fixed asset funds

Funding provided to be spent on capital items and assets donated to the Academy from the local authority on
conversion.

Unrestricted funds

The unrestricted funds represent funds available to the Governors to apply for the general purposes of the
academy.
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19. Statement of funds (continued)

Transfers

The transfer of funds are made up as follows:

The transfer from the restricted fixed asset fund to the GAG fund represents property expenditure expensed
through GAG but funded by capital grants.

The transfer from Dinnington High Schools unrestricted general fund to the GAG fund is to cover the in year
deficit during the year.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2016. 

Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2016 were allocated as follows:

Total Total
2016 2015

        £         £

Brinsworth Academy 1,509,171 1,613,141
Dinnington High School 72,233 167,459

Total before fixed asset fund and pension reserve 1,581,404 1,780,600

Restricted fixed asset fund 24,158,121 25,210,006
Pension reserve (5,373,000) (2,358,000)

Total 20,366,525 24,632,606

Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and
educational

support staff
costs

Other support
staff costs

Educational
supplies

Other costs
excluding

depreciation

Total

2016
Total
2015

£ £ £ £ £ £

Brinsworth Academy 6,106,777 872,451 202,819 1,146,528 8,328,575 8,563,256
Dinnington High

School 4,891,492 793,630 120,653 1,400,439 7,206,214 4,219,339

10,998,269 1,666,081 323,472 2,546,967 15,534,789 12,782,595
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20. Analysis of net assets between funds

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Total
funds

Total
funds

2016
£

2016
£

2016
£

2016
£

2015
£

Tangible fixed assets - - 23,565,152 23,565,152 24,088,815
Current assets 572,948 1,950,500 592,969 3,116,417 4,047,810
Creditors due within one year - (887,263) - (887,263) (1,092,884)
Creditors due in more than one

year - (54,781) - (54,781) (53,135)
Provisions for liabilities and

charges - (5,373,000) - (5,373,000) (2,358,000)

572,948 (4,364,544) 24,158,121 20,366,525 24,632,606

21. Reconciliation of net movement in funds to net cash flow from operating activities

        2016         2015
        £         £

Net (expenditure)/income for the year (as per Statement of financial
activities) (1,437,081) 12,588,817

Adjustment for:
Depreciation charges 647,204 506,139
Fixed assets donated on conversion - (13,554,599)
Dividends, interest and rents from investments (24,918) (17,852)
Profit on the sale of fixed assets (2,050) -
(Increase)/decrease in stocks (233) 1,022
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 87,524 (276,020)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors (203,976) 497,024
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (82,595) (1,428,305)
Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited - 1,993,000
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 101,000 110,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 85,000 55,000
Cash transferred on conversion to an academy trust - (257,920)

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities (830,125) 216,306

22. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

        2016         2015
        £         £

Cash in hand 2,806,824 3,650,927

Total 2,806,824 3,650,927
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23. Capital commitments

At 31 August 2016 the academy trust had capital commitments as follows:
        2016         2015

        £         £

Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements 25,785 373,153

24. Pension commitments

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teacher's Pension Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by South Yorkshire Pension Fund.  Both are Multi-employer defined benefit
pension schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 March
2013.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations
2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for
teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract, although they are able to opt
out. 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go’ basis – these contributions along
with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament. 

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Not less than every four years the Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal
actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap)
Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions.
Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation
report was published by the Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the valuation and
subsequent consultation are: 

 employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay, including a 0.08% employer administration
charge (currently 14.1%) 
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24. Pension commitments (continued)

 total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service
to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with
the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional past service deficit
of £14,900 million

 an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

 the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real
earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

During the previous year the employer contribution rate was 14.1%. The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an
employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September 2015. The next valuation of the TPS will be as at
March 2016, whereupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1
April 2019.

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,113,480 (2015 - £811,302).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website
(www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has accounted
for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out above the
information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total
contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2016 was £438,000 (2015 - £444,000), of which employer's
contributions totalled £322,000 (2015 - £149,000) and employees' contributions totalled
£116, 000 (2015 - £295,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 16.4% for employers and 5.5% to
12.0% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
Principal actuarial assumptions: 

        2016         2015

Discount rate for scheme liabilities %2.10 %4.00
Rate of increase in salaries %3.55 %4.05
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation %1.90 %2.30
Inflation assumption (CPI) %1.90 %2.30
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24. Pension commitments (continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

        2016         2015

Retiring today
Males 23 23.0
Females 25.7 25.6

Retiring in 20 years
Males 25.4 25.3
Females 28.5 28.4

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Fair value at Fair value at
31 August 31 August

2016 2015
£ £

Equities 3,997,000 3,122,000
Government bonds 1,027,000 752,000
Property 753,000 310,000
Other bonds
Cash/liquidity
Other

424,000
117,000
527,000

605,000
95,000

374,000

Total market value of assets 6,845,000 5,258,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £1,093,000 (2015 - £129,000).

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account
are as follows:

        2016         2015
        £         £

Current service cost (511,000) (405,000)
Net interest cost (85,000) (55,000)
Gains on curtailments and settlements (19,000) -
Adminstration fees (10,000) (8,000)

Total (625,000) (468,000)

Actual return on scheme assets 1,093,000 129,000
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24. Pension commitments (continued)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:

        2016         2015
        £         £

Opening defined benefit obligation 7,616,000 3,565,000
Upon conversion - 3,784,000
Current service cost 511,000 405,000
Interest cost 305,000 214,000
Contributions by employees 147,000 114,000
Actuarial losses/(gains) 3,702,000 (449,000)
Losses on curtailments 19,000 -
Benefits paid (82,000) (17,000)

Closing defined benefit obligation 12,218,000 7,616,000

Movements in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets:

        2016         2015
        £         £

Opening fair value of scheme assets 5,258,000 3,019,000
Upon conversion - 1,791,000
Interest income 220,000 159,000
Actuarial gains and (losses) 873,000 (103,000)
Contributions by employer 439,000 303,000
Contributions by employees 147,000 114,000
Benefits paid (82,000) (17,000)
Administrative expenses (10,000) (8,000)

Closing fair value of scheme assets 6,845,000 5,258,000
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25. Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2016 the total of the Academy trust’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was:

2016 2015
£ £

Amounts payable:

Within 1 year 59,990 58,175
Between 1 and 5 years 121,440 163,224
After more than 5 years 115 4,000

Total 181,545 225,399

26. Related party transactions

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain trustees’ remuneration and
expenses already disclosed in note 10.

27. Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for EFA. In the accounting period
ending 31 August 2016 the trust received £46,978 and disbursed £40,163 from the fund. An amount of £7,879 is
included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds that are repayable to the EFA.

28. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £ 10  for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a
member.
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29. First time adoption of FRS 102

It is the first year that the Academy Trust has presented its financial statements under SORP 2015 and FRS 102.
The following disclosures are required in the year of transition. The last financial statements prepared under
previous UK GAAP were for the year ended 31 August 2015 and the date of transition to FRS 102 and SORP 2015
was therefore 1 September 2014. As a consequence of adopting FRS 102 and SORP 2015, a number of accounting
policies have changed to comply with those standards.

Comparative figures have been restated to reflect the adjustments made, except to the extent that the Trustees
have taken advantage of exemptions to retrospective application of FRS 102 permitted by FRS 102 Chapter 35
‘Transition to this FRS’.

Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition to FRS 102 and SORP 2015 on total funds and net
income/(expenditure) for the comparative period reported under previous UK GAAP and SORP 2005 are given
below.

Reconciliation of total funds Notes 1 September 2014 31 August 2015
        £         £

Total funds under previous UK GAAP 11,697,789 24,632,606

Total funds reported under FRS 102 11,697,789 24,632,606

Reconciliation of net income Notes 31 August 2015
        £

Net income previously reported under UK GAAP 12,672,817
Change in recognition of LGPS interest cost A (84,000)

Net income reported under FRS 102 12,588,817

Explanation of changes to previously reported funds and net income/expenditure:

A

Under previous UK GAAP the trust recognised an expected return on defined benefit plan
assets in expenditure. Under FRS 102 a net interest expense, based on the net defined
benefit liability, is recognised in expenditure. There has been no change in the defined
benefit liability at either 1 September 2014 or 31 August 2015. The effect of the change has
been to increase the expense by £84,000 and decrease other recognised gains and losses in
the SoFA by an equivalent amount.
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30. SOFA prior year comparatives

Unrestricted
funds
2015

£

Restricted
funds
2015

£

Restricted fixed
asset funds

2015

£

Total
funds
2015

£

Income from:

Donations and capital grants   248,390   (1,979,053)   15,008,622   13,277,959
Charitable activities   52,182   12,530,069   -   12,582,251
Other trading activities   60,306   20,183   -   80,489
Investments   17,852   -   -   17,852

Total income

Expenditure on:

  

  378,730
  

  

  10,571,199
  

  

  15,008,622
  

  

  25,958,551
  

Raising funds   (35,694)   (22,290)   -   (57,984)
Charitable activities   (26,160)   (12,682,451)   (603,139)   (13,311,750)

Total expenditure

  

  (61,854)
  

  

  (12,704,741)
  

  

  (603,139)
  

  

  (13,369,734)
  

Net income/(expenditure) before transfers   316,876   (2,133,542)   14,405,483   12,588,817
Transfers between funds   (133,529)   108,134   25,395   -

Net income/(expenditure) before other
recognised gains/(losses)

  

  183,347
  

  

  (2,025,408)
  

  

  14,430,878
  

  

  12,588,817
  

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit
pension schemes   -   346,000   -   346,000

        

Net movement in funds   183,347   (1,679,408)   14,430,878   12,934,817
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